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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

01d Asbury Methodist Church is a large ashlar-stuccoed building of the Italianate-
eclectic style. It has gables facing both west and north and a low pitched roof.
Under the roofline are small wooden brackets. The main three-bay facade, that facing
west, has three doorways, one double and two single, The doors and elongated second-—
floor windows are arched at the top in the Italianate style. All of the windows of
the building and the doors on the north gable end are capped with keyed lintels. Ver-
nacular rose windows are in the center of both gable ends.

The main entry vestibule has two stairways leading to the second floor. The ceilings
and walls of the vestibule are covered with ornamental tin sheets. The same orna-
mentation is continued on the second floor. :

The main floor consists of four offices and a large meeting room. Above the main entry
vestibule is the sanctuary vestibule; and above the large meeting room and offices is
the sanctuary, panelled in elaborately-carved, dark-stained wood. A gallery is.on the
north, west, and south walls. Stairs to the gallery lead from the chancel in the east
end of the sanctuary and from the sanctuary vestibule.

The original tracker organ is in the chancel. The wooden mechanism remains; however,
the blower is now electric. A local organ maker made this organ and also one other,
now in Delaware City. :

01d Asbury has not always been a large two-story structure. As originally built in
1789, it was a one-story brick building, 35 foot square with a gallery at the west end
and a pulpit at the east end. There was also a four-foot-high wall down the middle of
the church to separate the sexes. Portions of the original 1789 structure are still
visible in the vestibule of the present building.

In 1811 the building was enlarged 20 feet to the east. By 1825 it had again been added
to and was 70 by 50 feet. Galleries were added on the north and south, but it remained
one story. In 1838 the church was again enlarged; it was extended 10 feet on the west
to form a vestibule.

The second floor was added in 1845 when the main floor was lowered two feet and the walls
increased by 7 feet, 6 inches. The first floor became much as it is today with four
classrooms (now offices), two on each side of the hallway, and a lecture room (50 by 38
feet) in the back. Galleries, 11 feet, 6 inches wide, were built on the north, west,

and south walls of the sanctuary.

The elaborate interior panelling was added in 1873. The chapel wing to the north was
added in 1875 and the exterior was stuccoed. Finally, the large tracker organ was
installed in 1896.

Today, 0ld Asbury sits on the corner of Third and Walnut streets and is surrounded by

an iron fence within which is also the original graveyard which contains the grave of

Captain Allan McLane, a noted Delaware Reyvolutionary officer. Very few eighteenth-

or nineteenth-century structures remain in this part of Wilmington. Indeed to the south

of the church is the Asbury Garden Apartment Complex, a low-rent urban redevelopment
unit. Thus, 0ld Asbury remains a reminder of the period when this part of Wllmlngton

was a substantial residential section.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

0l1d Asbury Methodist Church was the first Methodist church in Wilmington. It has been
continuously used by Methodists since its construction. 01d Asbury is also significant
because the three founding bishops of the Methodist Church in America preached there.
The physical growth of the church reflects the corresponding development of Methodism
in Delaware from a small, much-harassed group to the largest Protestant denomination
in the State. 0l1d Asbury is also significant because of its architecture.

Methodism first came to Wilmington in the 1760's when Captain Thomas Webb preached to
interested groups under the trees at the corner of King and Kent streets. The Metho-
dists next moved to Captain James Gilpin's storehouse on King Street wharf. Other
locations were used by the group, including James Thelwell's house at King and Third
streets and the Market House. In 1772 Francis Asbury, later Bishop of the Methodist
Church, preached for the first time in Wilmington. Dr, Thomas Coke and Richard What-
coat, both of whom also became bishops, preached to Wilmington's nascent congregation.

The Wilmington Methodists were a small, but heroic, group of men and women who were
harassed continually by non-Methodists. On May 12, 1789, the group acquired a lot on
- the corner of Third and Walnut streets, the site of the present church, from Caleb and
Sarah Way for £105. The original one-story church was built that summer and was dedi-

cated by Francis Asbury on October 16, 1789.

The founding cbngregation included 43 white members and'ié Black members. The Black
membership was active and grew to about 100 by 1805. In that year they left 01d Asbury
to form their own congregation. Ezion Church at Ninth and French streets was founded
by them.

014 Asbury grew rapidly after 1805 and was one of the largest and most active churches

. in Wilmington during the nineteenth century. Throughout the nineteenth century and
into the twentieth century, 0l1d Asbury has felt the missionary zeal. Here met the
Ladies Aid, Women's Foreign Missionary Society, Woman's Home Missionary and Home Circle,
King's Daughters, and Christian Endeavor. The records of the church and its various
missionary organizations are at the Delaware Archives in Dover.

In the twentieth century the membership began to decline as the white population of
Wilmington moved to the suburbs. Because there were several active Black churches in
the area, 0ld Asbury could not attract substantial numbers of new members from the
growing Black community. An attempt was made in the 1950's to attract Blacks to the
church when the church was turned over to the Colored Methodist Church; however, it

was unsuccessful and the church was taken over by the Methodist Conference of Wilmington.
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Today it is run by the Methodist Action Program as a community center and continues
in the missionary tradition of the church.

Although modified by its several additions, 0ld Asbury has outstanding Victorian
detail added in the 1870's. The tin-plate wall coverings in the vestibules and
sanctuary and the ceiling plasterwork and light fixtures in the sanctuary are well
executed and well preserved.
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